
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
To: Members of the Joint Audit & Governance and Performance Scrutiny 

(Transformation) Sub-Committee 
 

Notice of a Meeting of the Joint Audit & Governance 
and Performance Scrutiny (Transformation) Sub-

Committee 
 

Thursday, 17 October 2019 at 10.00 am 
 

Rooms 1&2 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
 

 

Membership 
 

Chairman – Councillor Liz Brighouse OBE 
Deputy Chairman - Councillor Nick Carter 

 
Councillors 
 

Paul Buckley 
Mike Fox-Davies 

 

Tony Ilott 
Liz Leffman 

 

Charles Mathew 
Glynis Phillips 

 
 
Notes: 

 
• Date of next meeting: 30 January 2020 
 

 
 
Yvonne Rees  
Chief Executive October 2019 
  
Committee Officer: Colm Ó Caomhánaigh, Tel 07393 001096;  E-mail: 

colm.ocaomhanaigh@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 
Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 

 those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 
partners. 

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 
The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 
 
For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the 
document.  

 

 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 

http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2019 and to receive information 
arising from them. 
 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Quarterly Review of the Transformation Programme (July to 
September 2019) (Pages 7 - 34) 

 

 This report updates members on progress with the Council’s wide-ranging 
Transformation Programme. It follows the second quarterly report presented to the Joint 
Sub-Committee on 25th July 2019 and reflects progress towards substantial service 
improvements, whilst delivering £49.7m of annual savings by 2022/23. 
  
The Sub-committee is RECOMMENDED to note and comment on the report. 
 

6. Finance, Strategic Capability and Provision Cycle  
 

 Members will receive a presentation on progress to date with the council’s work to 
redesign its Finance, Provision Cycle and Strategic Capability functions. 
 

7. Committee's Work Programme (Pages 35 - 36) 
 

 To review the Committee’s Work Programme. 
 

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

JOINT AUDIT & GOVERNANCE AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY 
(TRANSFORMATION) SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 25 July 2019 commencing at 10.00 am 
and finishing at 12.00 pm 

 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Liz Brighouse OBE – in the Chair 
 Councillor Paul Buckley 

Councillor Mike Fox-Davies 
Councillor Tony Ilott 
Councillor Liz Leffman 
Councillor Charles Mathew 
Councillor Glynis Phillips 
 

By invitation: 
 

Peter Marsden and Tim Spiers, Entec Si 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting 
 
 
 
 
Item 8 

Yvonne Rees, Chief Executive; Claire Taylor, Interim 
Assistant Chief Executive; Lorna Baxter, Director of 
Finance; Lauren Rushen, Policy Officer; Colm Ó 
Caomhánaigh, Committee Officer 
 
Will Harper, Interim Head of ICT; Nicholas Brownlow, 
Digital Services Manager 
 

 
The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting and decided as set out below.  Except 
insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the 
agenda and reports, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

15/19 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2019/20  
(Agenda Item. 1) 

 
Councillor Mike Fox-Davies moved and Councillor Glynis Phillips seconded 
that Councillor Liz Brighouse be elected Chairman of the Sub-Committee for 
the 2019/20 Council Year. 
 
RESOLVED: that Councillor Liz Brighouse be elected Chairman of the 
Sub-Committee for the 2019/20 Council Year. 
 

16/19 ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 
2019/20  
(Agenda Item. 2) 

 
Councillor Liz Brighouse moved and Councillor Tony Ilott seconded that 
Councillor Nick Carter be elected Deputy Chairman of the Sub-Committee for 
the 2019/20 Council Year. 
 
RESOLVED: that Councillor Nick Carter be elected Deputy Chairman of 
the Sub-Committee for the 2019/20 Council Year. 
 
The Chairman noted that she would prefer if the Chairman and Deputy 
Chairman could be titled Co-Chairs but the Constitution did not allow for that.  
The Chief Executive responded that she would take it up with the Law and 
Governance Section. 
 

17/19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda Item. 3) 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Nick Carter. 
 

18/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - SEE GUIDANCE NOTE  
(Agenda Item. 4) 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

19/19 MINUTES  
(Agenda Item. 5) 

 
The minutes of the meeting on 18 April 2019 were approved and signed. 
 

20/19 ICT DIGITAL STRATEGY  
(Agenda Item. 8) 

 
Claire Taylor introduced two representatives from consultants Entec Si, Peter 
Marsden and Tim Spiers, who have been working with OCC’s Head of ICT 
on the ICT health check and in designing a new strategy.  She described 
how ICT is central to the business case for transformation.  With £12m per 
annum spent on ICT and significant capital expenditure, it is important to 
have a clear strategy going forward. 

Page 2



 

 
Peter Marsden led the presentation.  Entec Si has 25 years of experience 
working with local authorities as well as the NHS, not-for-profit and business 
sectors.  The development of a strategy is still in the early stages.  It will tie in 
with the Council’s values and corporate plan. 
 
Technology changes very quickly – for example over 50% of transactions 
now take place via mobile phones – but it is important to get the foundations 
right. 
 
Officers and consultants responded to issues raised by Members as follows: 
 

 The ability is there to allow tracking of versions of documents but a 
roadmap is needed for its introduction and communication. 

 The strategy will have an implementation plan to ensure that change is 
planned. 

 The “health check” was needed to determine what equipment and 
systems are in place now.  Then moving forward the strategy will bring 
order to future developments and avoid different sections going in 
different directions. 

 Non-IT options will continue to be available to residents– primarily by 
telephone. 

 The carbon footprint reductions indicated on Agenda Page 37 are overall 
reductions and are not the result of transferring carbon emissions to 
external providers.  Providers can achieve much greater economies of 
scale. 

 The level of security on the Cloud is much higher that the Council could 
achieve itself.  The Ministry of Defence is on the Cloud.  Tens of 
thousands of attempts at cyber attacks are made each day (not 
specifically aimed at the Council) and they are successfully blocked. 

 Most security incidents are due to human actions rather than the 
technology.  Everyone needs to remain vigilant.  Training for councillors is 
already planned. 

 Officers will check the situation regarding insurance. 
 
Members also made the following suggestions: 
 

 Primary schools could be a resource to help harness the IT skills of 
young people in helping people who are less confident – something which 
could also help tackle loneliness. 

 The remaining maintained schools also need to be considered in the 
strategy.  OFSTED has been critical of record-keeping for safeguarding 
issues.  Solutions might then be sold on to non-maintained schools – 
even nursery schools are now spending a lot of money on IT. 

 The Council’s systems need to be able to talk to others such as the 
police, hospitals and schools to ensure that everyone has the most up to 
date information. 

 
The officers and consultants thanked Members for their feedback which will 
be taken on board in developing the strategy. 

Page 3



 

 

21/19 QUARTERLY REVIEW OF THE TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 
(APRIL TO JUNE 2019)  
(Agenda Item. 7) 

 
Claire Taylor introduced the report which outlines the situation at six months 
into a 3 to 5 year programme.  The focus in the last quarter has been on 
finance, strategic capability and the provision cycle. 
 
A proposed dashboard is included as Annex 1 in order to get feedback from 
Members of the Committee before it is circulated to all Members. 
 
Officers responded to Members questions as follows: 
 

 It was made clear from the start that a reduction in staff numbers was part 
of the planned savings.  Redundancies will be minimised by means of 
redeployment where possible and all proper HR processes will be 
followed.  It is not possible to even put a ballpark figure on related costs 
at this stage. 

 The first transformation changes in terms of service redesign will be the 
consultation on the Council’s Finance function due to start shortly with a 
briefing for around 50 staff involved.  The unions will be included in the 
consultation which will be completed by September. 

 The Finance changes focus on development of a new customer offer, 
enabling the council more effectively by a greater focus on income 
generation and commercialisation as well as a more consistent and 
higher standard of financial management  

 The partnership with Hampshire is not part of this but it will be re-
examined when the time is right. 

 Under the Finance review partnership initial opportunities with Cherwell 
District Council have been identified with a joint head of procurement 
appointed and a shared internal audit function planned from April 2020. 

 Reports can show savings against costs but increased efficiencies 
achieved are not always measurable in pounds. 

 The changes in family safeguarding have not been part of the 
transformation programme.  Other changes will continue to be made 
across the organisation as opportunities arise. 

 While the Council avails of consultant advice, our own staff are being 
upskilled at the same time.  Entec Si was specifically selected as IT 
consultants because of their record on business engagement. 

 
The following suggestions were made by Members for future reports: 
 

 Reports should say more about increasing demand for services, societal 
change and unbudgeted new requirements such as mental health 
services for young people up to 25 years of age. 

 Where tables and pie charts show percentages, it would be good to show 
the total figure as well, so the scale can be assessed. 

 

Page 4



 

22/19 FUTURE MEETINGS AND WORK PROGRAMME  
(Agenda Item. 9) 

 
The revised and new dates for future meetings and items for discussion were 
agreed as outlined in the Work Programme. 
 
 

 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing   

 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): all 

 

Joint Audit & Governance and Performance Scrutiny 
(Transformation) Sub-Committee – 17th October 2019 

 
Quarterly Review of the Transformation Programme (July - September 2019) 

 

Report by Corporate Director for Customer and Organisational Development 
 

 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. The Sub-Committee is RECOMMENDED to note and comment on the 
report 
 
 
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1  Overall programme progress 

This is the third quarterly report on the progress of the Transformation Programme, 
covering the period July to September 2019. Since the second report brought to this 
Joint Sub-Committee on 25th July 2019, significant progress has been made across 
the programme, including: 

● completing the formal staff consultation on restructuring the corporate Finance 
teams in order to deliver our redesigned and improved finance functions; 

● completing the review of the council’s Strategic Capability function, which will 
propose improvements in how we manage strategy and policy development, 
programme management, quality assurance, communications, consultation and 
engagement, and performance management; 

● completing the review of the council’s Provision Cycle, which looks at how the 
way it commissions, procures and manages contracts with our supply chain can 
be improved; 

● developing the approach to how the council delivers Business Administration 
and Support across its operational services;  

● reviewing the Customer Services Centre, looking at what can be done to 
improve current performance, culture, ways of working, use of technology and 
overall customer experience; 

● further work to scope out improvement priorities for how residents first interact 
with the council when they contact it for information, advice, guidance and 
support through the provision of services (the so-called ‘front door’); and 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



● taking stock of the scale and scope of the Transformation programme and 
evaluating whether any revisions to its structure, governance and reporting 
arrangements are required for the next phase of work, and the opportunities to 
accelerate the pace of change.  

Collectively, our transformation work seeks to radically improve ways of working so 
that we can improve our efficiency and quality of services whilst delivering savings 
that will allow us to do more of what matters for residents.  

The Programme continues to oversee a projected total of £49.7m in savings. £4.6m 
of savings was delivered in 2018/19, against a target for the year of £4.9m. The 
remaining £0.3m was rolled over to be delivered in 2019/20 against an overall target 
of £15m. 

A further £26.3m of planned Transformation savings are included in the Medium 
Term Financial Plan covering the period 2019/20 to 2022/23 and all projects related 
to these savings have been brought formally into the scope of the programme, in 
order to ensure their delivery. 

Of the remaining £18.5m savings required during that period, £1.5m is required to be 
delivered in 2019/20. 

The Transformation Programme Board has successfully shifted from its initial focus 
of ensuring that the governance and remit of the programme is coherent and 
functioning, to carrying out its two formal programme management roles: 

● as the ‘Design Authority’ – ensuring that all proposals for redesigning services 
and functions meet the Programme Objectives and adhere to the Design Principles 
that have been agreed; and 

● as the Benefits Realisation Board – ensuring that both service improvements 
and savings result from the programme.  

2.2  Taking the Transformation Programme to the next stage 

Twelve months on from the approval of the original business case, it is becoming 
increasingly clear that to maximise the impact of all of the Council’s improvement 
and development activity, that its entire programme of change needs to be managed 
collectively. The current scope of the Transformation Programme, whilst necessary 
initially to provide strong foundations for change, is becoming a limiting factor and 
creating an unnecessary demarcation in planning and delivering improvement. The 
upcoming refresh of the business case will address this issue and ensure that there 
remains the critical balance between maintaining or improving services, and making 
financial savings. 

While the Transformation Programme has generally followed the path that was 
originally envisaged in the business case approved by Cabinet in September 2018, 
there have been some revisions agreed in terms of the timing and emphasis on 
particular elements of the original design.  

Page 8



 
In all instances, there have been clear reasons why the programme has needed to 
demonstrate flex. A number of external factors have become more important during 
the delivery of the Transformation Programme – integration with partners in order to 
join up services around residents, notably Cherwell District Council and the 
acceleration of plans to establish an Integrated Care System in Oxfordshire. 
 
The Council is now clearer about what it wants from its Transformation programme 
than it was when the business case was originally agreed. Its experience of 
delivering the programme and the recommendations from the Peer Review in March 
2019 have enabled it to develop an understanding of what it needs to focus on, but 
also how it wants to deliver the work. Changes in the chief executive’s leadership 
team over the course of the past six months have brought a fresh and helpful 
perspective to the programme. 
 
Having now reached the six month point of the Programme, we are commencing a 
formal refresh of the Transformation business case for the first time. It will seek to 
bring together all change activity and specifically will cover a number of areas: 

● scope – including assessing whether the scope of the Transformation programme 
is currently targeted on the right areas and is sufficiently comprehensive in terms 
of its reach across the organisation; 

● design – including whether the way the programme is currently structured and 
governed in the most effective way or whether any improvements can be made; 

● savings – including a refresh of forecast savings to be delivered from the 
programme and a re-evaluation of any risks attached to delivery of these; and 

● cost – including a re-evaluation of the costs of delivering the programme and any 
updates to account for additional support or resources required that were not 
originally budgeted for. 

The proposed refresh will be considered by the Chief Executive’s Leadership Team 
(‘CEDR’) during November and will be reported to a future meeting of this 
Committee. 
 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Programme objectives 

The overarching objective for the programme agreed between CEDR and the 
Programme Board remains that: 

‘The Council delivers an ambitious and successful transformation programme which 
helps it to achieve its strategic objectives and meet the financial targets set out in its 
Medium Term Financial Plan’ 

Page 9



and this reinforces the need to ensure there is now one overall programme of 
change. 

3.2 Structure of the programme 

The structure of the programme continues to pull together existing Transformation 
projects approved as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan, with new projects that 
will be designed to make service improvements whilst seeking to save a further 
£18.5m between 2019/20 and 2021/22. However there is clearly a need to ensure 
the programme of work addresses the entirety of our change agenda as we begin to 
create the next Medium Term Financial Plan for the period 2020/21 to 2023/24. 

The grouping of projects under the three Workstream Boards continues to reflect the 
way the business case set out how the Council would systematically work through 
the implementation phase of the operating model. 

Work continues to ensure that the findings of the Peer Review, carried out in March 
2019, are integrated where appropriate into the programme and that the overall 
Transformation Programme complements ongoing service improvement work that is 
being led by directorates.  

3.3 Risk and issue management 

As part of the latest draft of the corporate monitoring report, the overall 
Transformation risk has been assessed as below: 

Risk Cause Risk Effect 

Residual 

Risk Rating 
Existing Controls Further Action Required 

The 

Transformation 

Programme 

does not 

deliver its 

objectives for 

service 

development, 

redesign and 

improvement. 

This could 

result in an 

impact on the 

quality of 

services and 

the delivery of 

savings. 

A reduction in service quality, 

a failure to deliver savings, 

and/or a failure to meet the 

growing service demand. The 

Transformation Programme 

currently targets £49.7m of 

base budget savings by 

2022/23, whilst seeking to 

maintain or improve services 

and manage demand. It 

currently consists of 48 

projects/activities that will 

deliver the overall programme. 

The intention of the 

programme is to ensure that it 

is built of many constituent 

parts, so that if any one 

project fails, it can be “tied 

off”, replaced or redesigned. 

Medium - Every project clearly identifies the 

benefits to be delivered and the 

long-term financial implications, 

supported by detailed planning and 

milestones where appropriate 

- Clear financial benefits realisation 

articulated in all project plans, 

regularly monitored through 

monthly highlight reports and 

integrated with corporate budget 

monitoring process 

- Systematic service improvement 

activity focused on demand 

management, and developing a 

more preventative approach to our 

services 

- All project resourcing considered 

monthly, roles allocated and 

additional 3rd party support 

commissioned where there is a lack 

of internal capacity or skills 

- Continue to ensure that detailed 

planning and monitoring of projects 

fully understand interdependencies 

between projects 

- Update the Transformation Business 

Case in line with the emerging Service 

and Resource Planning process, and 

expand the scope of the programme 

where further savings are required 

-  Ensure the Transformation 

Programme is fully aligned to, and 

supportive of, the corporate priority 

setting and planning process 

- Transformation Programme Board and 

Chief Executive Direct Reports (CEDR) 

to regularly review the programme’s 

fitness for purpose, as part of 

quarterly reviews reported to 

members 

 

Page 10



  

Page 11



In addition, the current Transformation Programme risk register holds the following 
strategic risks which are reviewed monthly at Transformation Programme Board: 

Risk 

Residual 

Risk 

Rating 

Existing Controls Further Action Required 

Value for money 

Transformation does not deliver 

sufficient value for money for our 

residents and businesses 

High 

Detailed 3 year transformation 

implementation plan established that builds 

on the approved business case.  

Business case in process of being refreshed. 

Consider establishment of a corporate 

reserve / contingency specifically for any 

redundancy costs. 

Quality of services 

Transformation does not improve or 

maintain the quality of services for 

our residents and businesses 

Medium 

Quality and customer experience are key 

design principles that have informed the 

development of the implementation plan. 

 

Business case in process of being refreshed. 

Service and Community Impact Assessments 

will be carried out as part of standard project 

processes. 

Scope and governance 

Transformation is delayed through 

scope and governance not being in 

place quickly enough 

Low 

Governance assessed against established 

programme methodology and plan for 

improvement put in place. 

 

Further improvements to governance of the 

programme are being considered 

(particularly re links to existing OCC 

government processes e.g. capital approvals 

board). 

Pace and capacity 

Lack of pace and OCC capacity limits 

ability of programme to progress 

against plan 

High 

Governance structures in place support fast 

escalation of resourcing concerns to 

leadership. Capacity needs for next phase of 

Customer work are being scoped out in 

detail. 

Additional external support has been 

procured to support programme pace. 

Further possible external support is being 

considered for Human Resources and 

Communications teams, including possible 

external support for an Organisational 

Development Plan. 

Information Communication 

Technology (ICT) dependency 

Risk that ICT enablers aren't in place 

to support delivery of 

transformation projects resulting in 

poor services or stalled change 

activity 

 

Medium 

New ICT strategy is currently in development 

with a focus on getting better at supporting 

the business. ICT representation at 

transformation workstream boards is helping 

to ensure that transformation projects 

consider ICT implications at an early stage 

and will provide ICT team with more 

oversight of transformation programme 

activity. 

Next phase of the transformation 

programme will involve closer integration 

with ICT. Scoping of Customer work is 

considering how to align ICT more closely in 

the day to day management and evolution of 

the programme. 

 

  

Page 12



4. PROGRESS TO DATE  

4.1 Overview of progress to date 

Consistent with the implementation plan that was agreed at the end of 2018, a series 
of transformation workstreams are in progress. A number of these cover core 
components of the future operating model – these include Finance, Strategic 
Capability, Provision Cycle and Business Administration and Support (BAS).  

In addition, the Transformation programme is managing a series of activities to 
ensure that the other transformational projects and interventions identified in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan are being driven at an appropriate pace and with 
sufficient rigour. Each of the three Workstream Boards comprising the programme’s 
governance arrangements, is responsible for providing additional oversight for these 
projects and for doing what they can to support the achievement of the desired 
outcomes. 

Annexe 1 provides a high-level assessment of the programme in the form of a 
dashboard. It covers the scale of benefits achieved against target, the proportion of 
the identified investment committed, some further detail on key workstreams and 
links to further information on the programme.   

The Transformation Programme currently comprises 48 projects and interventions, 
of which 25 are ‘in flight’, 18 are in the planning or preparation phase and five are 
complete. The majority of the projects are on track to deliver. However, as would be 
the case with any complex change programme of this scale, the timings of some 
projects are having to be realigned as the work progresses (as indicated by the 
dashboard). In some instances, it has been necessary to re-profile some of the 
anticipated savings, making up any shortfall from existing, as well as new areas of 
activity. Overall, the programme is on course to help ensure the Council meets its 
financial requirements. 

Further detail on key workstreams underpinning the programme is provided below.  

4.2 Finance 

The redesign of the Council’s Finance function and the proposals for a new 
organisational structure have now been completed. The finance function has co-
designed its offer with service users, partners and professionals to ensure the 
customer offer it provides is consistent and effective. The work will support stronger 
financial management across the organisation, underpinned by improved financial 
systems and processes. Specific opportunities for joint working with Cherwell District 
Council have also been developed.  

The outputs from this work have been reviewed through the Transformation 
programme’s governance arrangements and CEDR and have been signed off by the 
project’s Accountable Officer. Detailed analysis of the savings this redesign will 
release is ongoing, but it is likely the target saving of £500k per annum will be 

Page 13



exceeded (with short, medium and long term savings being realised over a one to 
three year period). 

The Finance project will now restructure the corporate Finance teams in order to 
implement the improvements that have been identified. A period of formal staff 
consultation has recently been concluded and feedback from this work is currently 
being reviewed and incorporated into the designs and organisational structures 
proposed. In parallel, work has commenced to implement a redesigned process for 
making payments to providers in both adults and children’s social care, which 
accounts for part of the financial savings identified. This entails making efficiencies 
through the consolidation of finance tasks into specialist functions.  

4.3 Strategic Capability  

Work to redesign the Council’s Strategic Capability function has now been 
completed. Strategic Capability has focused on a number of corporate functions 
including policy and strategy, communications, consultation and engagement, 
programme and project management, performance management.  

As with Finance, a project group of officers, with external support, has worked to 
design the new function including its customer offer, how it will work with services 
and other partners, its ways of working and an implementation plan. The 
Accountable Officer for the project has designed a new organisational structure for a 
joint function with Cherwell District Council and this will now be taken forward for 
formal consultation with impacted staff. It is currently anticipated that the consultation 
period will commence before the end of October 2019. In parallel, work has 
commenced to design a new process for setting the 2021 corporate plan, with 
aligned service and financial planning, as well as a new performance management 
framework.  

The business case suggested that improvements in the council’s Strategic Capability 
could deliver savings of approximately £1.9m per year. Early analysis of the savings 
that will be recognised as a result of this workstream suggest that the target will be 
exceeded (as with Finance, short, medium and long term savings will be realised 
over a one to three year period). 

4.4 The Provision Cycle 

Work continues to progress the Provision Cycle (the way we commission, procure 
and manage contracts with our supply chain). This is a three-way piece of work with 
Cherwell District Council and the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and is 
focused on how we can streamline and improve our processes to get greater value 
from our spend on suppliers.  This will deliver a cutting edge, modern function that 
will better enable us to drive out savings from our third party spend with suppliers. A 
key dependency for this project is the emerging work to establish an Integrated Care 
System (that seeks to integrate health and social care across a wide geographic 
area that includes Oxfordshire, Berkshire West and Buckinghamshire).  There will be 
aspects of this work that will impact across the Thames Valley, as well as 
arrangements that need to develop specifically for the Oxfordshire area.  

Page 14



Detailed financial analysis of the projected savings associated with this work is 
underway to determine the extent to which a target savings of £2.2m per annum can 
be achieved. An implementation plan for the redesigned Provision Cycle function has 
been developed, while the Accountable and Responsible Officers for the workstream 
are close to finalising a proposed new organisational structure. Once the outputs 
from the work have been reviewed and agreed through the Transformation 
Programme’s governance arrangements and CEDR, they will form the basis of the 
formal staff consultation, as with the Finance and Strategic Capability work. 

4.5 Business Administration and Support (BAS) 

Work to review and revise the Council’s approach to how we deliver Business 
Administration and Support (BAS) is developing at pace. The vision for this work is to 
make it easier and simpler for our Support Services to help the council be the best it 
can be. The work will build on the best of what we have already and develop a 
professionalised, consistent service with clear development opportunities and a 
defined career path. It will also save money for the Council through improving our 
use of technology and removing duplicative / unnecessary processes. 
 
A Project Group has now been established to oversee the work which includes 
representatives from across the organisation. Further analysis of the business 
processes and volumes of activity currently performed by administrative and support 
staff has been carried out. In addition, the views of a wide variety of staff that were 
captured at the annual Managers’ Conference in June have been fed into the work, 
this will be further validated and tested at the Senior Managers Forum in November 
and shared more widely across the organisation.  
 
Work to develop a redesigned service will continue over the coming weeks. The 
redesign of BAS services will form a core component of the next phase of the 
Transformation programme, given its potential to enable significant savings to be 
achieved. 

4.7 Culture, values and behaviours 

The chief executive’s leadership team (CEDR) has scoped how the council’s overall 
organisational culture, values and behaviours can be enhanced, to support 
Transformation. The Transformation Programme Board, in conjunction with the 
Deputy Director for Human Resources and Organisational Development, are 
commissioning the appropriate support for what is likely to be an 18 month 
programme of engagement that will touch all staff and members. 

4.8 Communications 

The previous quarter has seen significant improvements to the regularity and content 
of our internal communications with staff about the Transformation Programme. The 
range and detail of content on the Transformation Intranet pages has increased 
substantially, with updates on key projects and activities provided regularly as part of 
a new “what’s been happening” section. Additional videos and infographics have 
been added to the Intranet pages and a new link to the transformation site means 

Page 15



that staff are able to access information more readily. In addition, a new monthly staff 
update on transformation is now being provided to staff via email and the Cabinet 
Member for Transformation is circulating regular updates to all members, including a 
‘dashboard’ that describes the progress being made.    

 

5. NEXT PHASE OF WORK  

5.1 Scope and approach 

The first two quarters of the Transformation programme have seen significant 
progress made across many areas. In particular, this relates to the design of new 
back office functions – Law and Governance, Finance, Strategic Capability and the 
Provision Cycle – where formal consultation on new staff structures has either 
started or is about to commence. In addition, the programme has focused on the 
development of the council’s Digital Strategy, as well as a number of more tactical 
opportunities to deliver savings and/or other benefits. Work is also now being 
undertaken to address Business Administration Support and the ICT service. 

Consideration is now being given to the next phase of Transformation activity. 
Consistent with the business case approved last year, and its associated 
implementation plan, the next phase of the programme will focus on how the council 
initially responds to its residents and businesses when they first make contact (the 
so-called ‘customer management’  and ‘customer assessment’ aspects of the 
council’s functions). Work has already begun to review the Council’s Customer 
Service Centre and identify short-term opportunities for optimising performance. 
Further work will require significant effort and input from a range of stakeholders, but 
particularly from front line service teams. 

While the precise details of the work that will be carried out are still being 
determined, it is likely that the work, which is due to commence in November, will 
entail a more extensive redesign of all ‘front office’ capabilities. It is important to note 
that this work will focus on the experience of the Council’s customers. Steps will be 
taken to optimise the residents’ experience of the Council by making best use of 
capacity already in place and examining the opportunities to integrate services with 
other partners. 

Much of the work that will be taken forward under the next phase will be highly 
dependent on the Council’s approach to technology. It is likely that critical technology 
decisions will need to be made either at the conclusion or possibly even during the 
next quarter. This was anticipated within the original business case. The work will 
build on progress already made in relation to digital services and we anticipate 
developing further proofs of concept, ensuring that these relate to opportunities to 
manage demand or prevent avoidable contact wherever possible, whilst not 
excluding those residents and businesses that aren’t able to access services on-line.  

Capacity was cited as an issue by the Local Government Association Peer Review 
Team, so the programme is working hard to ensure that key members of staff are 

Page 16



freed up from their day-to-day roles in order to support the work required and 
backfilled by other colleagues where needed. Organisational Development support 
will be needed to help drive culture change, grow and embed supporting behaviours 
and establish and communicate a corporate narrative. The programme also 
continues to assess the requirement for targeted external support to help deliver and 
accelerate elements of the programme.   

5.2 Additional areas of opportunity 

Moving forward, the programme recognises that there exists a number of emerging 
areas of opportunity (driven by both internal and external factors), which the 
Transformation programme must flex and take advantage of in order to maximise its 
impact. We are already ensuring that our work on the Provision Cycle is ‘future-
proofed’ to take account of developments towards an Integrated Care System where 
the Council will work even more closely with the Health sector. Services are also 
forging ahead with improvements such as the implementation of the Family 
Safeguarding Plus Model within Children, Education and Family Services and we are 
ensuring close alignment with such initiatives, because of the implications for how 
we interact with partners to better support residents, use buildings and technology. In 
addition we anticipate that there will be: 

● opportunities offered by the emergence of new technologies - work in this area is 
already underway, but it is proposed that the Council intensifies its focus on 
technology as an enabler of Transformation; 

● further opportunities to achieve greater efficiencies from the Council’s spend with 
third parties, once the redesigned officer structure has been implemented 
through the Provision Cycle project; 

● opportunities for the Council to make more effective use of the data and 
information it holds, using these assets to generate real insight and improve the 
way services are planned and delivered; 

● opportunities to work more closely with partners and the voluntary and 
community sector in supporting our residents and businesses;  

● consideration of the physical presence of the Council across Oxfordshire and a  
review how its use of assets can be enhanced; 

● opportunities to support the Council operate more commercially, including 
applying more focus to the Council’s opportunities to increase its income from 
current sources where it is appropriate to do so, as well as exploring the 
potential of new markets and other commercial initiatives; 

● opportunities to think further about the Council’s relationships with other 
partners, particularly in relation to ongoing work to establish an Integrated Care 
System in Oxfordshire, as well as thinking more innovatively about our 
relationship with other partners, including all tiers of government in the county; 
and 

Page 17



● opportunities to enhance our demand management work, including addressing 
specific opportunities to use early intervention, behavioural science and other 
techniques to prevent the needs of residents escalating to the point where they 
may require critical support. 

 

6 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

6.1 Equality and inclusivity 

At the time of writing, a Service and Community Impact Assessment (SCIA) is being 
completed for the redesigned Finance function work. Each functional redesign will 
have a SCIA developed as part of the formal staff consultation process. 

6.2 Staff implications 

For the Finance workstream, a period of staff consultation has recently been 
concluded and feedback is currently being reviewed and incorporated into the 
designs and organisational structures proposed for the function.  

For the Strategic Capability workstream, it is anticipated that the proposed structure 
and redesign of the function will enter a period of staff consultation before the end of 
October 2019. Provision Cycle restructures will follow shortly afterwards. 

The programme continues to do all it can to minimise the impact on staff and to 
avoid redundancy wherever possible, through natural turnover, redeployment and 
retraining. 

6.3 Financial implications 

The financial implications of the Transformation programme overall were provided to 
the Sub-Committee at its inaugural meeting on 17th January 2019. A separate 
update is included at Annex 1. As part of the upcoming business case refresh and 
the Service and Resource Planning process for 2020/21 to 2023/24, the financial 
profile of the programme will also be reviewed. 

6.4 Climate change and sustainability 

The Transformation programme has begun to routinely assess the climate change 
and sustainability implications and opportunities of the proposals that are being 
developed. As part of some transformation projects, climate change considerations 
are being explicitly built into the objectives and structure of the work. The next phase 
of the programme will more systematically consider the role that the Transformation 
programme can play in contributing to the Council’s climate action agenda. 

Annexes 

Page 18



Annex 1: Finance outlook for the Transformation Programme (July – September 
2019) 

Annex 2: Transformation dashboard (July – September 2019) 

  

Page 19



Background papers 

Transformation Business Case (August 2018): 

https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s43508/CA_SEP1818R20%20-
%20A%20New%20Operating%20Model%20for%20Oxfordshire%20County%20Cou
ncil.pdf 

Claire Taylor, Corporate Director, Customer and Organisational Development 

October 2019 

Contact details 

claire.taylor@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 20

mailto:claire.taylor@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Annex 1 – Finance Outlook for the Transformation Programme (July – Sept 2019) 

 

Purpose  

 
1. This annex provides further information on the financial progress of the 

transformation programme and savings delivered, for the period July to September 
2019. 

Savings 

 
2. The Transformation programme is committed to delivering at least £49.7m of 

savings between 2018/19 and 2022/23:   

 £4.9m was from previously agreed transformational activity deliverable in 
2018/19 (of which £4.6m was achieved and the remainder carried forward into 
2019/20 to be delivered), 

 £26.2m of previously identified savings in the planned Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) between 2019/20 and 2022/23, 

 £18.5m to be found from additional transformational programme activities, the 
detail of which continues to be developed, planned and implemented.  

 

The Transformation Programme 

 
3. The current Medium Term Financial Plan includes £18.5m of savings to be 

delivered from additional Transformation programme activities, i.e. through 
redesigning services to maintain or improve them at lower cost, reducing our third 
party spend with our suppliers, and generating additional income streams where 
appropriate to do so. 

 
Table 1 – Forecast Delivery of Additional Transformation Programme Savings 

 

 

** confidence of delivering savings is rated High (on track to be delivered in full), 
Medium (some risk to delivery but being mitigated) or Low (savings unlikely to be 
delivered as planned). 

 
4. £4.6m savings is on track to be delivered from the service redesign of Finance, 

Strategic Capability and Provision Cycle.  The redesigned functions for Finance 
and Strategic Capability will begin to be implemented in the last three months of 
the year with Provision Cycle to follow from April 2020.  All these will be delivered 
in stages, focusing initially on those core teams whose roles predominantly deliver 

Original 

Target High Low

Orginal 

Target High Low

Orginal 

Target High Low

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Finance, Strategic Capability, Provision Cycle -4.600 -1.000 -0.400 -1.200 -2.500 -2.400 -1.700

Other Service redesign (being scoped out) -10.900 0.000 -0.600 -4.800 -3.500 -6.100 -6.800

Reducing Third Party Spend -2.000 0.000 -1.000 -1.000 -1.000 -1.000

Increasing Income -0.500 0.000 -0.500 -0.500 0.000

Other Efficiencies -0.500 -0.500 -0.500 0.000 0.000

Transformation Programme -18.500 -1.500 -0.400 -1.100 -7.500 -2.500 -5.000 -9.500 -1.700 -7.800

21/22

Confidence of Delivery of Savings

Transformation Programme Activity

(additional to MTFP savings activities)

Total 

Target

19/20 20/21

Page 21



these functions and then in a second wave, directorates will implement the 
remainder of the redesigned functions. 

5. £10.9m remains to be delivered through future service redesign.  Projects to 
deliver the next phase of service redesign have commenced, supported by our 
Strategic Partner PwC.  The next phase of work will include our Business 
Administration Support, Customer Service Centre and all those areas of the 
Council where residents and businesses initially contact us for information, advice, 
assessment and for support/services. The financial benefits of these workstreams 
are currently being modelled.   

 
6. Savings of £3m are to be delivered by reducing third-party spend (following the 

implementation of a new Provision Cycle function), increasing income and other 
efficiencies.  Proposals for these targets are being developed and overseen by the 
Transformation Programme Board and chief executive’s leadership team (CEDR).  
Of this, £0.5m is in the Medium Term Financial Plan to be delivered in 2019/20.    

 

2019/20 Savings 

 
 
Table 2 – Forecast Delivery of 2019/20 Savings Targets 

 

** confidence of delivering savings is rated High (on track to be delivered in full), 
Medium (some risk to delivery but being mitigated) or Low (savings unlikely to be 
delivered as planned). 
 
7. Just under 50% of the savings for 2019/20 have been delivered or are on track to 

be delivered.  It should be noted that the size of the Transformation savings target 
for 2019/20 is three times the size of what was planned and achieved in 2018/19. 
Savings so far delivered include the contract reductions for Waste Management 
and the Integrated Business Centre as well as the ongoing effect of the increased 
income from changes to the Adult Social Care contributions policy and the full 
year effect of the Children’s Services’ Reconnecting Families initiative. 

 
8. Where current assessments of deliverability of savings suggest that specific 

targets will not be met, then directorates are highlighting those issues and 
planning mitigating actions (such as making alternative savings) in line with 
normal budget monitoring arrangements. In particular, in Children’s Services, 
additional support is being brought in to help identify how £1.3m of third party 
savings can be robustly and sustainably delivered. Cost reductions to care 
packages in Adults’ Services for those service users with Learning Disabilities 

Orginal 

Target Delivered High Medium Low

£m £m £m £m £m

Service Redesign -2.282 -0.100 -1.247 -0.360 -0.600

Reducing Third Party Spend -10.027 -2.570 -1.528 -3.422 -2.507

Increasing Income & other -2.415 -0.375 -1.240 -0.100 -1.000

Total Transformation -14.724 -3.045 -4.015 -3.882 -4.107

Transformation Activity Type

CONFIDENCE OF SAVINGS DELIVERY

19/20

Page 22



(£1.2m) and income from parking services in the Communities Directorate (£0.5m) 
are also examples where other options to mitigate potential under-delivery are 
being developed. 

9. Transformation Programme savings of £1.1m in 2019/20 are also flagged as low 
confidence of being delivered on time, owing to the time taken to mobilise the 
programme. In order to help mitigate this, the next phase of service redesign is 
already underway.  The savings profiles are currently being modelled and it may 
be possible to accelerate the financial benefits of these to contribute towards the 
2019/20 savings target.  Options for other Transformational efficiencies in 2019/20 
are currently being considered by the Transformation Board and the chief 
executive’s leadership team (CEDR).  

 
10. Those savings targets with a medium confidence of delivery include: 

 £2.7m in Adult services, reducing care home prices and reviewing home 
care packages.   

 £0.7m in Children’s services, reflecting the sensitivities in savings on 
transport costs for those with Special Educational Needs and/or 
Disabilities, reducing third party spend with suppliers, and savings from 
unregulated placements.  

 £0.4m in Communities, the effect of slippages in timescales to small 
scale service redesigns in Transport and Fire and Rescue services. 

 

Future Savings 

 
Table 3 – Forecast Delivery of Savings Required Across the Remaining Medium 
Term Financial Plan 

 
 

 
** confidence of delivering savings is rated High (on track to be delivered in full), 
Medium (some risk to delivery but being mitigated) or Low (savings unlikely to be 
delivered as planned). 
 

11. Over £30m savings are profiled for the next three years.  Currently 58% 
(£17.3m) of the savings are reported as having medium or low confidence of 
delivery.  However, plans to meet £12.8m of Transformation Programme savings 
are currently being developed beyond the detailed work that was completed as 
part of the original Transformation business case.  

 

Transformation Spend and Funding 

 
12. The business case estimated £17.9m of implementation costs to deliver the 

Transformation Programme.  This excludes redundancy/pension costs.  Costs of 

Orginal 

Target Delivered High Medium Low

Orginal 

Target High Medium Low

Orginal 

Target High Low

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Service Redesign -7.300 0.000 -3.800 0.000 -3.500 -9.750 -2.800 -0.150 -6.800 -0.500 -0.500 0.000

Reducing Third Party Spend -6.883 -0.087 -2.669 -2.670 -1.457 -2.925 -0.950 -0.400 -1.575 -1.180 -0.930 -0.250

Increasing Income & other -1.110 0.000 -0.610 0.000 -0.500 -0.330 -0.330 0.000 0.000 -0.115 -0.115 0.000

Total Transformation -15.293 -0.087 -7.079 -2.670 -5.457 -13.005 -4.080 -0.550 -8.375 -1.795 -1.545 -0.250

Transformation Activity Type

CONFIDENCE OF SAVINGS DELIVERY

20/21 21/22 22/23

Page 23



implementation are being monitored against that initial forecast and the plan is 
being refined on an ongoing basis.   

  

Page 24



 
Table 4 – Comparison of Transformation Programme Costs to the Business 
Case Estimates 

 

 
13. Funding for the estimated implementation costs has been identified from 

corporate reserves (£9m) and the Capital Programme (£5m).  £4m of funding is 
still to be identified.   The investment to date will predominately be funded 
through reserves, due to the nature of the spend, leaving £2.2m to fund similar 
costs for the rest of the programme.  

 
Table 5 – Return on Investment (to date)  
 

 

 
14. 38% of the estimated investment costs have been spent to date.  Due to the 

phasing of the savings profile (releasing dispersed activity savings in service 
redesign phases) only £0.4m of savings will be released in 2019/20.  It is 
anticipated that by the conclusion of the programme this will deliver £4.6m ongoing 
annual savings – plus savings on other activities still being scoped out (for 
example Business Administration Support). 

 

Area

Business 

Case

Actual 

Spend

Committed 

Spend

Planned 

Spend

Total Estimated 

Spend

£m £m £m £m £m

Technology implementation

1.1 Technology platform components £4.9 £0.0 £0.0 £4.9 £4.9

1.2 Technology support £2.0 £0.2 £0.0 £1.8 £2.0

£6.9 £0.2 £0.0 £6.7 £6.9

People

2.1 Training £1.0 £0.0 £0.0 £1.0 £1.0

2.2 Backfill £2.0 £0.0 £0.7 £1.3 £2.0

£3.0 £0.0 £0.7 £2.2 £3.0

Commissioned Support

3.1 Strategic advice & programme management £2.6 £0.8 £0.4

3.2 Support to the PMO £1.3 £0.1 £0.5

3.3 Service construct & implement

3.4 Organisation design

£8.0 £2.4 £3.5 £2.1 £8.0

Total £17.9 £2.5 £4.2 £11.1 £17.9

£4.1 £1.5 £2.6

£2.1 £8.0

Investment Financial Return on

Cost Benefits Investment

£'m £'m

Target 17.90 18.50 1.0

Actuals (to March 2020) 6.80 0.40 0.1

Balance 11.10 18.10

Balance % 62% 98%

Current Forecast 6.80 4.60 0.7

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Transformation Dashboard

October 2019

P
age 27



READ THE INTRANET 
FRONT PAGE

 1800

Page views of the 
transformation 
intranet front page

Focus for next quarter
• Further planning for the next phase of Transformation work, 

with a focus on directorate-based service improvements and 
improving our Front Office interface with residents 

• Continue work to refresh the business case – click here to see 
the original business case for transformation

• Develop an Organisational Development plan to address 
aspects of the council’s culture, values and behaviours 
through transformation

• Consider further improvements to the governance of the 
programme - click here to see the current governance 
structure and Programme Board Terms of Reference

• Further work to integrate sustainability and the Council’s 
climate action agenda into the design of the transformation 
programme

Key achievements this quarter
• Completing the staff consultation on the redesign of our Finance function - 

click here for more details
• Completing our Strategic Capability delivery plan -  click here to learn more
• Progressing our work on Provision Cycle which looks at how we commission, 

procure and manage contracts with our suppliers - click here to watch a video 
to learn more

• Reviewing our Customer Services Centres and identifying areas for immediate 
improvement  - click here to learn more

• Developing our approach to how we deliver Business Administration Services 
across the Council - click here for more

• Further aligning the council’s digital strategy and developing Information, 
Communications and Technology (ICT) strategy with our transformation 
programme

• Significantly improving our communications with staff on transformation

SEE A BREAKDOWN OF 
PLANNED SPEND

£17.9m

Planned spend
Total planned spend on 
transformation 18/19 to 
22/23

5

Number of 
completed projects

 48

Total number of 
projects
Number of projects planned 
as part of programme

£15.0m

19/20 savings 
target

20%

% of 19/20 savings 
target achieved

£2.5m

Spend to date
Total amount spent so far 
on the transformation 
programme

£49.7
m

SEE A BREAKDOWN OF 
THE SAVINGS TARGET

Total savings target
Savings target for 
transformation programme 
18/19 to 22/23 

£49.7m

READ MORE ABOUT 
CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE 

OPTIMISATION WORK

 90%

Response rate to 
employee 
engagement survey 
for CSC

WATCH THE PMO VIDEO

780

Page views of PMO 
news video 
headline

P
age 28

https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/transformation-programme
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/transformation-programme
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s43280/Annex%201%20Operating%20model%20business%20case.pdf
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/staff/Governance.pdf
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/support/projectmanagement/TransformationProgrammeBoard-TermsofReference.pdf
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/whats-been-happening-transformation-projects
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Rfs-MxK6ZLA
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/projects-flight
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/projects-flight
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/projects-flight
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/projects-flight
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=maocHDHJIfE
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=maocHDHJIfE


Complete Red

Amber

Target savings by confidence of delivery

● An additional £0.82m of savings 
have been delivered since the 
previous quarter

● Just under 50% of the savings for 
19/20 have been delivered or have a 
High rate of confidence of delivery

● Savings delivered in 19/20 include 
contract savings related to Waste 
Management and the Integrated 
Business Centre. Savings with a high 
confidence of delivery for 19/20 
include those related to Supported 
Lodgings.

● Work is underway to consider what 
additional savings could be 
delivered for 19/20

RAG rating of projects*

*projects are RAG rated for their progress against delivery plan, 
taking account of cost, scope, benefits, timescales, risks

P
age 29

https://youtu.be/xVQFE_VnFgA
https://youtu.be/xVQFE_VnFgA
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/case-studies-0
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/case-studies-0


Transformation implementation costs

● Transformation savings are split 
across three workstreams - 
Enabling the Council, Serving the 
Customer and Transforming 
Service Delivery. Click here to 
read more about each of the 
workstreams

● The business case estimated 
£17.9m of implementation costs 
to delivery the Transformation 
Programme (excluding 
redundancy/pension costs). 
Costs of implementation are 
being monitored and will be 
reviewed again as part of the 
business case refresh.

Target savings by workstream

P
age 30

https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/background-information-transformation-programme
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s43280/Annex%201%20Operating%20model%20business%20case.pdf
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/background-information-transformation-programme
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/background-information-transformation-programme


Non-financial benefits - Examples of the expected non-financial benefits reported from live transformation 
projects

Project Benefit

Business 
Administration 
Services 

● Clarity for staff on how to access business support, request a one off piece of work 
and access information about the service

● More structured career paths and clearer job expectations for support staff
● Increased flexibility and resilience of workforce to respond to peaks in demand
● Improved consistency in business administration processes and work allocation

External bookings ● Greater awareness amongst staff of the costs of staff travel, accommodation and 
external bookings to the organisation

● Improved consistency and fairness in the application of staff expenses policies
● Increased uptake of Skype meetings, reducing need for staff travel 
● Alignment to climate action agenda  

Provision Cycle ● More strategic approach to managing spend leads to greater value and quality from 
services procured

● More joined up ways of working and collaboration, including between CDC and OCC
● More robust and informed decision-making with lower level of bureaucracy
● More consistent and standardised approach to contract management

Special Education 
Needs (SEN) Home 
to School Transport

● Improved consistency and fairness in application of SEN transport policy
● Improved business intelligence about the service and future demand
● Increased number of young people able to travel independently due to training 

received

Service improvement benefits

P
age 31



A project spotlight on…

Strategic 
Capability

What is our aim?
This work has sought to design a new Strategic Capability function for Oxfordshire County Council and Cherwell District Council. Strategic 

Capability refers to the functions that OCC and Cherwell require in order to define and realise their vision, high level strategy and 

objectives. The scope of Strategic Capability covers the following areas: policy and strategy; communications, consultation and 

engagement; project and programme management; performance management. 

What have we done so far?
Work to redesign the Strategic Capability function has now been completed. A working group of officers, supported by external 
consultants, designed the new function including its customer offer, how it will work with services and other partners, its ways of 
working and an implementation plan. A new organisational structure for a joint OCC and Cherwell function has also been proposed.  

What is next?

The proposed redesign and restructures will now be taken forward for staff consultation. It is currently anticipated that the period of 
staff consultation will begin before the end of October and it will last 8 weeks. Following an evaluation of feedback received during 
consultation, work to implement the revised structure will begin. In parallel, work has begun to design a new process for setting the next 
corporate plan in 2021 and a new performance management framework. 

Key things to know…
Project start: March 2019

Expected savings:  £1.9m per year

Workstream Board: Enabling the Council

People involved: Strategy, Policy and Programme 
Management Office, representatives from service areas, 
PwC consultants

Accountable 
Officer:

Claire Taylor

P
age 32



Click here to access the Transformation Intranet pages

Click here to hear from David Stubbington, a Programme Manager, on the role of  
programme management in the Transformation Programme

Want to know more?
Click on the links below to find out more about the transformation programme:

Click here to see a summary of key projects underway in transformation

Click here to read the Design Principles which underpin the Transformation 
Programme

Click here to understand more about change management support available to OCC 
staff, to support them to stay well at work

P
age 33

https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/transformation-programme
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/transformation-programme
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=maocHDHJIfE&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=maocHDHJIfE&feature=youtu.be
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/projects-flight
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/projects-flight
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/background-information-transformation-programme
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/background-information-transformation-programme
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/help-and-support-transformation-projects
https://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/help-and-support-transformation-projects


Transformation Programme Plan

Service redesign

Front office

Back office
● Finance
● Strategic Capability
● Provision Cycle
● Business Administration Services

● Customer Management
● Customer Assessment
● Digital Strategy

● Service-based redesign

FY18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

The Transformation Programme Plan will 
be reviewed as part of the upcoming 
business case refresh

There are a number of emerging areas of opportunity 
which the Transformation programme will take 
advantage of in order to maximise its impact: 

● taking advantage of emerging technologies;
● increasing value from spend with third parties;
● generating insight from data and business 

intelligence;
● optimising the assets and physical assets of 

Oxfordshire;
● increasing our commercial income; and
● thinking more innovatively about our strategic 

partnerships. 

P
age 34



Updated 9th October 2019 
 

Transformation Sub-Committee 
Forward Plan 

 

Item Notes 

30 January 2020 

Quarterly Performance Report To include performance dashboards, 
capacity to deliver projects and a 
comparison between projected and 
actual savings 

30 April 2020 

Quarterly Performance Report To include performance dashboards, 
capacity to deliver projects and a 
comparison between projected and 
actual savings 

23 July 2020 

Quarterly Performance Report To include performance dashboards, 
capacity to deliver projects and a 
comparison between projected and 
actual savings 

 
Future Items to be Scheduled:  
 

Item Notes 

HR, Organisation Development Review  

Refreshed Business Case   

  

  

 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Quarterly Review of the Transformation Programme (July to September 2019)
	TRA_OCT1719R05 - Annex 2

	7 Committee's Work Programme

